



1 November 2022





Title of Policy	Water Management Policy								
Approved by	SMT								
Approval Date	01/11/2022								
Owner	Director of Business Development								
Author	Grant Hutchison Health and Safety Advisor								
Version	2.0								
Period of	60 months								
Review									
Date of Review	01/11/2027								
Lead	Business Growth and Development								
Directorate									
Stakeholders	Partnership Human ICT								
	Forum Resources								
	□ Staff ⊠ Property □ Other								
	□ Finance □ BR24								
	Operations Development								
Scottish Social	\Box Outcome 1 \Box Outcome 6 \Box Outcome 11								
Housing Charter	$\Box \text{Outcome 2} \Box \text{Outcome 7} \Box \begin{array}{c} \text{Outcome} \\ 13 \end{array}$								
Outcomes and Standards this	$\Box \text{Outcome 3} \Box \text{Outcome 8} \Box \begin{array}{c} \text{Outcome} \\ 14 \end{array}$								
policy helps to achieve	$\Box \text{Outcome 4} \Box \text{Outcome 9} \Box \begin{array}{c} \text{Outcome} \\ 15 \end{array}$								
🛛 Outcome 5 🔲 Outcome 10									
Care Standards this policy	Standard 1 Standard 2 Standard 3								
helps to achieve	Standard 4 Standard 5								



Contents

1	Statement1
	About Bield1
2	Introduction1
3	Definitions2
4	Responsibilities
5	Identification and assessment of risk2
	Assessments
	Risk assessments
	Hot and cold water services risk management programme
6	Management and the responsibilities and competence of personnel
	Responsible person
7	Record keeping4
8	Bield housing and care – methods of implementation
	Identification and Risk Assessment 4
	Implementation of Precautions/Remedial Work5
	Record Keeping and Monitoring5
9	Staff responsibilities and monitoring5
10	Training5
11	Escalation procedure5
	Action level one
	Action level two
	Action level three
Арр	endix 1 Lines of communication8
Арр	endix 2 Recording Sheet9
	pendix 3 Hot and Cold Water Services Risk Management Programme Development nagers, Area Managers and Property Management Officer – Guidance Note
	pendix 4 Hot and Cold Water Services Risk Management Programme Consultant / htractor Guidance Note
Арр	pendix 5 Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment



1 Statement

- 1.1. The purpose of this policy statement is to describe how Bield Housing and Care [Bield] will protect tenants, owners, staff and other stakeholders in relation to water hygiene and scald risk.
- Bield do this by following the requirements of the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002 (as amended) (COSHH), and the Approved Code of Practice & Guidance (ACOP): 'The Control of Legionella in Water Systems Approved Code of Practice & Guidance 2013.
- 1.3. Bield's method of managing risk in regard to water hygiene and scalding is set out in this document.
- 1.4. The scope of this policy statement affects all Bield Housing and Care property and other buildings under its management.

About Bield

- 1.5. Our vision is a Scotland where people of all ages are respected, can make their own choices and lead independent and fulfilling lives.
- 1.6. Our mission is to improve the quality of life of older people by offering a diverse range of housing, care and other services.
- 1.7. Our policy embodies our values which are Honesty Equality and Diversity Dignity Integrity

Ambition Caring

Kindness

2 Introduction

- 2.1. This policy statement is a summary of the requirements of the Control of Substances Hazardous to Health Regulations 2002 (as amended) (COSHH) and the actions to be taken to meet those requirements, together with further action for implementing the requirements of the Approved Code of Practice (ACOP) The Control of Legionella in Water Systems Approved Code of Practice & Guidance 2013.
- 2.2. The temperature requirements for control of Legionellosis and the risk of scalding for vulnerable persons require particular management and this policy sets out Bield's process for managing those risks¹.

¹ NHS Estates Health Guidance Note (HGN) 'Safe' hot water and surface temperatures 1998 edition(file 357) (Scottish version is Scottish Health Guidance Note (1999) recommends how to meet employer's legal duty of care in respect of the risk of scalding and burning from hot water.



3 Definitions

- 3.1. The ACOP applies whenever water is stored and used and where there is a means of creating and transmitting water droplets which may be inhaled, thereby causing a reasonably foreseeable risk of Legionellosis and, in particular, to the following plant and systems whenever the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974 applies:
 - hot and cold water services irrespective of size in premises where occupants are particularly susceptible;
 - hot water services generally
 - spa baths and pools in which warm water is deliberately agitated and recirculated;
 - other plant and systems containing water which is likely to exceed 20°C and which may release a spray or aerosol (a cloud of water droplets and/or particles) during operation or when being maintained.
- 3.2. While this is not an exhaustive list, it identifies those systems with greatest potential to cause infection.

4 Responsibilities

- 4.1. Bield Housing and Care will:
 - identify and assess the risk of legionella;
 - prepare a scheme for preventing or controlling the risk;
 - implement and manage precautions and controls;
 - keep records of the precautions implemented;
 - appoint a person to be responsible.

5 Identification and assessment of risk

- 5.1. All schemes shall be assessed to determine whether or not the water systems are susceptible to colonisation by legionella and incorporate a potential means for creating and disseminating water droplets. The risk should be identified and the risk they present should be assessed.
- 5.2. The risk assessment will be assessed for the routine operation or use of the system but also in relation to breakdown, abnormal operation, commissioning or unusual circumstances.
- 5.3. The assessment will take account of:
 - the potential for droplet formation;
 - the storage of water
 - hot and cold water temperatures;
 - the likely risk to those who will inhale water droplets;
 - means of preventing or controlling the risk.
- 5.4. In assessing the risk and drawing up precautions particular attention should be paid to circumstances where:
 - the population contains a high proportion of susceptible people as, for example, in many hospitals or nursing homes; or



• the number of people at potential risk is high as, for example, in densely populated areas.

Assessments

- 5.5. Individual schemes will be risk assessed taking into account the factors set out in the preceding paragraph.
- 5.6. Where this initial assessment shows a risk of Legionellosis, then a full risk assessment will be carried out to determine the extent of the risk, and where appropriate, Bield's Hot and Cold Water Services Risk Management Programme will be introduced.

Risk assessments

5.7. Full Risk Assessments will be carried out by consultants who are able to demonstrate the necessary skills and experience in this field of work. The Risk Assessments will be reviewed at least every 24 months.

Hot and cold water services risk management programme

- 5.8. This programme sets out a regime of inspection, maintenance, cleaning and testing with the primary intention of avoiding conditions which permit legionella to proliferate.
- 5.9. Proliferation may be avoided by:
 - avoiding water temperatures between 20°C and 45°C. Water temperature is a particularly important factor in the control of risk of Legionellosis;
 - avoiding water stagnation. If water is allowed to stand for long periods in a warm building its temperature will settle between 20°C and 45°C and encourage the growth of biofilm which can harbour legionella;
 - avoiding the use of materials in the system that can harbour or provide nutrient for bacteria or other organisms;
 - keeping the system clean so as to avoid the build-up of sediments etc, which may harbour bacteria or provide nutrients for them;
 - the use of water treatment, where it is appropriate and safe to do so;
 - ensuring that the system operates safely and correctly and is well maintained.
- 5.10. Confirmation that the systems are working is obtained by periodic sampling and analysis.

6 Management and the responsibilities and competence of personnel

- 6.1. Inadequate management, lack of training and poor communication have all been identified as contributory factors in outbreaks of legionnaires disease.
- 6.2. It is therefore important that those people involved in assessing risk and applying precautions are competent, properly trained and aware of their responsibilities.

Responsible person

- 6.3. One named person will be appointed as being responsible for overseeing the assessment and implementation of precautions (the Responsible Person).
- 6.4. This person should be a senior manager, or have similar status with sufficient authority to ensure that measures are carried out effectively.



- 6.5. The person appointed as being responsible for overseeing the assessment and implementation of precautions (the Responsible Person) shall be Bield's Director of Business Development.
- 6.6. Staff responsibilities and lines of communication must be properly defined and clearly set out.
- 6.7. The implementation and effectiveness of the precautions must be monitored and arrangements should be made to allow for staff who leave or are absent from duties so that precautions are still implemented.

7 Record keeping

- 7.1. To ensure that precautions continue to be carried out and that adequate information is available for checking what is done in practice, a record should be kept showing the information specified in the Approved Code of Practice (ACOP).
- 7.2. Precautionary measures and treatments, monitoring results and remedial work should be logged and signed or initialled by the person who carried out the work. Sufficient information (dependent upon the type and complexity of the system) should be recorded to show what measures have been taken and how they have been monitored.

8 Bield housing and care – methods of implementation

Identification and Risk Assessment

- 8.1. The various water system types to be found in Bield's premises have been assessed as follows:-
 - Existing office accommodation, with the exception of Dundee and BR24 which are located within housing schemes, present a reasonably foreseeable risk of legionellosis. The Dundee and BR24 office water systems will be risk assessed as part of the scheme within which they are located;
 - Housing comprising individual flats with self-contained hot and cold water systems may present a risk of legionellosis and should be the subject of individual risk assessment to determine the level of risk and whether or not individual schemes fall within the scope of this policy;
 - Housing with communal hot and cold water systems do present a reasonably foreseeable risk of legionellosis.
- 8.2. Initially, legionella risk assessments which also consider the scalding risks shall be carried out by a specialist water quality consultant on all of the Schemes/Offices and thereafter subject to periodic review and re-assessment.



Implementation of Precautions/Remedial Work

8.3. Reports will be submitted to the Service Contracts Officer for necessary action to be taken at each Scheme as each assessment is completed.

Record Keeping and Monitoring.

- 8.4. All persons involved in any aspect of the prevention and control of Legionellosis, and the control of scalding risk shall maintain and keep adequate records to show the actions which have been taken.
- 8.5. The records must be kept available for inspection at any time either by line managers, or other interested parties.
- 8.6. Logbooks containing relevant information and forms will be retained within each scheme where the property has been assessed as presenting a risk of Legionellosis (Appendix 2).

9 Staff responsibilities and monitoring

9.1. The responsibilities of, and lines of communication between staff at all levels shall be as set out in Appendix 1.

10 Training

- 10.1. Online Legionella Awareness Training is available on "Grapevine" for all staff who may be involved in identifying, assessing, implementing, recording or monitoring the water hygiene programme.
- 10.2. All scheme staff and their line managers must complete this training and a requirement to carry this out will also be introduced and included in the induction training for new staff. Additional training may also be arranged where required. Responsible Person training is provided to relevant staff members every three years.

11 Escalation procedure

- 11.1. The Responsible Person has the key role of monitoring the effectiveness of the risk assessments and control strategies in their respective areas.
- 11.2. The early identification of a failure in the risk assessment / control strategy process is a fundamental part of the water management system.
- 11.3. This three level system of 'Action Levels' is designed to provide the Responsible Person with a formalised system for the determination of the level of risk with respect to the failing in question.
- 11.4. Each 'Action Level' is accompanied by a corresponding list of Action Requirements, which the Responsible Person must implement.



Action level one

The following criteria denote that an Action Level 1 issue has arisen:

- a. An aerobic count of 1,000 and up to 10,000 cfu/ml.²
- b. Where the water temperatures are occurring outside the design parameters and these fall within the temperature range of $20^{\circ} 45^{\circ}$ C
- c. Where a control procedure is demonstrably failing

Actions required:

The Responsible Person carries out an immediate review of the risk assessment and the current control strategy.

Where the Responsible Person cannot devise an improved control strategy that will reduce the Action Level criteria, then consultation must take place with the relevant Contractor or External Advisor.

The Responsible Person sends out an Information Notice email to the Duty Holder³ detailing the issues that have arisen. A copy of the Information Notice is retained on file.

Action level two

The following criteria denote that an Action Level 2 issue has arisen:

- a. A Legionella bacteria count at or above the level of detection but below 1000 cfu/ml.
- b. An aerobic count of 10,000 and up to 100,000 cfu/ml.

Actions required:

Sampling of the water system within 48 hours if possible

Notification to the Duty Holder, Occupational Health Department (if relevant) and the relevant contractor of the issue.

Disinfection and cleaning of the entire water system.

A review of the risk assessment and the effectiveness of the current control measures by the Responsible Person.

Action level three

The following criteria denote that an Action Level 3 issue has arisen:

- a. A Legionella bacteria count above 1000 cfu/ml.
- b. An aerobic count above 100,000 cfu/ml.

² cfu/ml – colony forming unit / millilitre

³ Duty Holder – the employer; where the risk from their undertaking is to their employees or to others (ACOP Paragraph 23(a)



c. A case of ill-health that a Doctor considers to have been potentially caused by exposure to legionella bacteria.

Actions required:

Immediate shutdown of the system to prevent the potential for infection or further infection.

Implementation of controlled access procedures to the area or equipment.

Immediate notification to the Duty Holder.

Immediate consultation with the Duty Holder, External Advisor and Contractors to establish a plan for further water sampling, disinfection, cleaning and re-sampling.

Responsible Person to notify the Occupational Health Department of the issue and risks.

11.5. Legionnaires' Disease is notifiable in Scotland under the Public Health (Notification of Infectious Disease)(Scotland) Regulations 1988.⁴

^{1.1. &}lt;sup>4</sup> ACOP Appendix 2 paragraph 1



Appendix 1 Lines of communication

Name	Lynne Douglas				
Company	Bield Housing and Care				
Title	Chief Executive Officer				
Location	79 Hopetoun Street Edinburgh, EH7 4QF				
Responsibilities	Statutory Duty Holder				
Name	Andrea Paterson				
Company	Bield Housing and Care				
Title	Director of Business Development				
Location	Craighall Business Park, 7 Eagle Street, Glasgow G4 9XA				
Responsibilities	Responsible Person				
Name	Heather Thomson				
Company	Bield Housing and Care				
Title	Service Contracts Officer				
Location	Craighall Business Park, 7 Eagle Street, Glasgow G4 9XA				
Responsibilities	Implementation of Hot and Cold Water Systems Risk Management Programme				
Name					
Company	Bield Housing and Care				
Title	Property Management Officer				
Location	Various				
Responsibilities	Oversee and implement corrective actions in their schemes where requested by the Service Contracts Officer and act as main site contact for all related works				
Name					
Company	Bield Housing and Care				
Title	Scheme Manager				
Location	Scheme address				
Responsibilities	Record water temperatures as outlined in the Hot and Cold Water Systems Risk Management Programme. Flush little used outlets.				
Name	Robert Sneddon				
Company	ACS				
Title	Water Hygiene Operations Manager				
Location	Block 2, Unit 11, Blantyre Industrial Estate, Blantyre				
Responsibilities	Advice on water hygiene, provision of consultancy services, and carrying out a regular programme of water sampling, tank inspection and shower disinfection as directed by Bield Housing and Care.				



Appendix 2 Recording Sheet

HOT and COLD WATER SERVICES

RISK MANAGEMENT PROGRAMME

TASK	PRIORITY RATING	BY WHOM	JAN	FEB	MAR	APR	MAY	JUNE	JULY	AUG	SEPT	ост	NOV	DEC
Record temperature at calorifier.	1	Scheme Manager	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*
Record hot water temperature at outlets.	1	Scheme Manager	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*
Record cold water temperature at outlets	1	Scheme Manager	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*
Record temperature in cold water storage tank.	2	Consultant		* C						* C				
Carry out weekly flushing of little used outlets	1	Scheme Manager	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly	wkly
Take samples of potable water for Total Viable Count analysis.	2	Consultant								*				
Complete Online Awareness Training Programme on Grapevine	2	All staff												
De-scale and disinfect shower heads Communal © Tenants (T)	2	Consultant / Contractor		*© *(T)			*©			*© *(T)			*©	
Take samples of water for Legionella analysis.	3	Consultant								*				
Drain, clean, & disinfect system	1	Consultant		As and when inspection results indicate work is necessary.			<u> </u>							
Inspect cold water storage tank	2	Consultant	* C						* C					
Enter results in log book and Property Management Scheme Folder – section Four (Water Hygiene)	2	All	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*	*
Audit results	1	Consultant		*						*				

Appendix 3 Hot and Cold Water Services Risk Management Programme Development Managers, Area Managers and Property Management Officer – Guidance Note

Requirement	Target	
Record temperature at calorifier – take reading from thermometer located on heater	Minimum of 60°C	No tolerance If temperature recorded is less than 60°C – report to Property Services. If temperature is above 70°C – report scalding risk to Property Services Reference form 4.5 and 4.6 ; Monthly water Supplies Temperature Checks
Record hot water temperature at outlets – test to be carried out on rotation at taps <u>with</u> <u>no</u> temperature control	Minimum of 50°C	No tolerance If temperature less than 50°C after running for one minute – report low temperature to Property Services If temperature is above 70°C– report scalding risk to Property Services Reference form 4.5 and 4.6 ; Monthly water Supplies Temperature Checks
Record hot water temperature at outlets – test to be carried out on rotation at taps <u>with</u> temperature control	Maximum of 43°C	Tolerance of \pm 1.5°C If temperature less than 41.5°C – report blending valve fault to Property Services. If temperature higher than 44.5°C – report blending valve fault to Property Services, alert staff to scalding risk and prevent tenants from using tap. Reference form 4.5 and 4.6 ; Monthly water Supplies Temperature Checks
Record cold water temperature at furthest point on system location	Below 20 ° C	No tolerance If temperature recorded is higher than 20 ° C – report to Property Services Reference form 4.5 and 4.6 ; Monthly water Supplies Temperature Checks
Carry out and record weekly flushing of little used outlets		This must be carried out every week. Scheme managers should review the frequency of usage of outlets on each occasion Reference form 4.7 ;Weekly Flushing of Little Used Outlets
Record known locations of showers in scheme		Reference form 4.3 ; Shower Inventory Form
Contractor to de- scale and disinfect shower heads and shower Hoses Quarterly	To disinfect showerheads and shower hoses where water may stagnate.	Service Contracts Officer will instruct contractor to visit and remove and dismantle all shower heads and shower hoses. All component parts should be placed in an anti-bacterial bleach solution (sodium hypochloride) for at least 1 hour. On completion, rinse in cold water and flush through again when re-fitted to shower. Contractor will return to re-assemble parts and re-fit to showers.
Enter all visits, actions (Water Hygiene)	and outcomes	in Property Management Scheme Folder Section Four

Appendix 4 Hot and Cold Water Services Risk Management Programme Consultant / Contractor Guidance Note

Requirement	Target	Method, Tolerance and Remedial Action
Contractor to take		Service Contracts Officer to instruct contractor to
Legionella		take annual Legionella samples from water system
Samples Contractor to carry		Service Contracts Officer to instruct contractor to
out TVC analysis		take annual TVC samples from water system
of water system		
Contractor to	To ensure required	Service Contracts Officer to instruct contractor to
Inspect cold water	standards for water	inspect cold water storage for compliance with
storage tank(s)	storage are being	Byelaw 30 and evidence of contamination either
Once a year	achieved.	from bacteria or foreign bodies.
		Works orders must be issued to appropriate
		contractors where contamination is suspected.
Contractor to	Maximum of 20°C	Service Contracts Officer to instruct contractor to
Record		take temperature of stored cold water. Where
temperature in		temperature is 18°C or higher, the reason for the
cold water storage		high temperatures must be ascertained and
tank(s) twice a		appropriate remedial works put in hand
year Contractor to de-	To disinfect	immediately Service Contracts Officer will instruct contractor to
scale and disinfect	showerheads where	visit and remove and dismantle all shower heads.
shower heads	water may stagnate.	All component parts should be placed in an anti-
Quarterly	water may staynate.	bacterial bleach solution (sodium hypochlorite) for
Quarterry		at least 1 hour.
		On completion, rinse in cold water and flush
		through again when re-fitted to shower.
		Contractor will return to re-assemble parts and re-
		fit to showers.
Enter all actions		
and outcomes in		
Property		
Management		
Scheme Folder		
Section Four		
(Water Hygiene)	/	

Appendix 5 Equality and Diversity Impact Assessment

	Title of Policy to be	e assessed: Water Ma	anagement Policy	ent			
2	Date: 21.04.22						
3	Lead Officer/Manager: Grant Hutchison						
4	EQIA Team (who will be involved): Zhan McIntyre						
5	Director/Manager: Andrea Paterson						
6	Is the function or p	oolicy existing, new, o	or review: Review				
7		bjectives/purposes/o the service provided	utcomes of the funct I:	ion or policy, and			
	The purpose of this management across		how we will manage	risk relating to water			
	The policy applies	to all Bield colleague	es				
7a	Who should beneficustomers	t from the policy (tar	get population): All c	olleagues and			
7b			y other functions, po this exercise? Please				
8	following factors a	nd provide initial cor	sitive or negative imp nments/observations /ears, young people, a	i.			
	•		arning disability, senso	ry impairment, long-			
	term medical conditi Maternity and civil The policy will hav within a civil partne	ons, mental health pro partnership e no impact on peop ership	blems.	tly giving birth or			
	term medical conditi Maternity and civil The policy will hav within a civil partne Race: Minority ethr Religion or belief: Sex: Women, men, maternity). Gender reassignm	ions, mental health pro partnership e no impact on peop ership nic people (includes Gy includes people with n and transgender peop	bblems. Ie expecting or recen /psy/Travellers, non-Ei	Itly giving birth or Inglish speakers).			
	term medical condition Maternity and civil The policy will hav within a civil partner Race: Minority ethr Religion or belief: Sex: Women, men, maternity). Gender reassignm another. Sexual orientation: People in remote, n People in different seasonal People who have leased	ions, mental health pro partnership e no impact on peop ership nic people (includes Gy includes people with n and transgender peop ent: The process of ch : Lesbian, gay, bisexua rural, and/or island lo t work patterns: e.g. p ow literacy	bblems. Ie expecting or recen /psy/Travellers, non-Er o religion or belief. Ie (include issues relation hanging or transitioning al, and heterosexual pe	ntly giving birth or nglish speakers). ting to pregnancy and g from one gender to eople. m, job share,			
	term medical condition Maternity and civil The policy will hav within a civil partner Race: Minority ethr Religion or belief: Sex: Women, men, maternity). Gender reassignm another. Sexual orientation: People in remote, n People in different seasonal People who have level People in different on a low income)	ions, mental health pro partnership e no impact on peop ership nic people (includes Gy includes people with n and transgender peop ent: The process of ch : Lesbian, gay, bisexua rural, and/or island lo t work patterns: e.g. p ow literacy socio-economic gro	blems. Ie expecting or recen ypsy/Travellers, non-En o religion or belief. Ie (include issues related hanging or transitioning al, and heterosexual per bcations bart-/full-time, short-ter ups (includes those liv	Itly giving birth or Inglish speakers). Iting to pregnancy and g from one gender to eople. Im, job share, ing in poverty/people			
	term medical conditi Maternity and civil The policy will hav within a civil partne Race: Minority ethr Religion or belief: Sex: Women, men, maternity). Gender reassignm another. Sexual orientation: People in remote, in People in different seasonal People who have le	ions, mental health pro partnership e no impact on peop ership nic people (includes Gy includes people with n and transgender peop ent: The process of ch : Lesbian, gay, bisexua rural, and/or island lo t work patterns: e.g. p ow literacy	blems. Ie expecting or recen /psy/Travellers, non-Er o religion or belief. Ie (include issues relat hanging or transitioning al, and heterosexual per ocations part-/full-time, short-ter	ntly giving birth or nglish speakers). ting to pregnancy and g from one gender to eople. m, job share,			

	Disability	No specific impact	Inspection required – people nee know purpe	so d to ose of	Information must be available in easy to read formats
	Maternity and civil partnership	No specific impact	checks / clo	eaning	
	Race	No specific impact	Inspection required – people nee know purpe checks / cle	so d to ose of	Information must be made available in alternative languages and formats
	Religion or belief	No specific impact	No specific impact No impact		
	Sex and Gender reassignment	No specific impact	No specific impact		
	Sexual orientation	No specific impact	No specific impact	2	
	People in remote, rural, and/or island locations	No specific impact	No specific impact	:	
	People in different work patterns	No specific impact	No specific impact	•	
	People who have low literacy	No specific impact	Inspections required – so people need to know purpose of checks / cleaning No specific impact		Information must be available in easy to read formats
	People in different socio-economic groups	No specific impact			
9	 Needs and e Uptake of se N/A Levels of pa N/A 	ervices;	-		
Don	impact has been ic ulation groups			-	II it address the
гор	ulation groups			-	ve impact?
Age Disability:		N/A Easy to read in	N/A Easy to read information		
	ernity and civil nership	N/A	N/A		
Race		Information in a languages requ	Information in alternative		
	gion or belief	N/A		N/A	
	and Gender signment	N/A	N/A N/A		

Sexual orientation	N/A	N/A					
People in remote, rural,	N/A	N/A					
and/or island locations							
People in different work	N/A N/A						
patterns							
People who have low	Easy to read information	N/A					
literacy							
People in different socio-	N/A	N/A					
economic groups							
Briefly explain how the poli	cy contributes to our equality	and diversity values by					
answering the following que	estions:						
 How will it provide ed 	quality of access to services, inf	formation, and employment?					
 Does it or could it ce 	lebrate diversity?						
 Will it or could it pron 	note good relationships within a	and between communities?					
 How will it provide go 	ood quality, inclusive services?						
	-						
N/A							
Any additional information,	questions, or actions require	ed? Please explain.					
Sign off:							
As Director I am satisfied with the results of this EIA							
The findings will be referred to within Service Plans and target set. The Action							
Plan will be reviewed annually within Business planning reporting.							
Signature:	/	Date:					







Speaking your language - we are happy to translate our policies on request.

يمكن ترجمة سياساتنا عند الطلب إذا كنت بحاجة إلى مساعدة ، فيمكننا توفير مترجم

Nasze zasady mogą być przetłumaczone na żądanie. Jeśli potrzebujesz pomocy, możemy zapewnić tłumacza

我们的政策可以应要求翻译。 如果您需要帮助,我们可以提供翻译

> ہماری پالیسی کا درخواست پر ترجمہ کیا جاسکتا ہے۔ اگر آپ کو مدد کی ضرورت ہو تو ہم ایک ترجمان فراہم کرسکتے ہیں

